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Resallostiens: of Cld "Glen Echa™
ot tho Teoo=Lined Road to Plodsens

In 1977 Mr. Hels Carlson walked up and
dowrn Bledmont Avenue in Cakland with ma. hs
wi walked, he poinbed out the locations of
old family homes and businesses. He deg-
cribed what had changed, what had vanizhed
since his family moved inte the nelghibop-
fosd in 1906 (when he was five years old).
Wels had inguisiktive cyes and a mindg that
recorded and rememberad details that the
average person soon forgets.

one of this pioneer's vivid memorles was
ef the Decoration Day (Memorial Day) par—
edes up to the cemeteries. There were Sol-
diers marching up the Avenue Lo Hountalin
View, firing rifle salutaes over the graves
of military heroes. A marching unit of
League of the Cross Cadets assenbled at
Facred Heark Chuech, 40th and {(then) Grove,

Eroadway and Micdrmont, Looking moreh, alsut 1010, Droadusy
i ak leds; Caklord Tractlon Corpany seresEsas will Saxae tho
waiting papcaner deownbown, [(Ted Wurs ool lossiaa)

marching up 40th and turning on Howe Skhreat
ta 3t. Mary's Censbery. Incidentally, S5t.
Marv's recorded its first burial zhortly
kefore Hountain View opened in 1863.

We started our walk in fronk of Chapel of
the Chimes, Julla Morgan's architectural
masterpiece. In carlier fimes the lastc bloc
of Ficdmont Avenus was home Lo Several es-
tabplishments offering markle monuments Lor
the gravevards. lassard Florist was there,
and a roge nuEsSery at 4499. The cast side o
the stroet was mostly open flelds before
910. At the first interscction, whera
Fleasant Valley now crosses, wag "Pledmont
Juretion," a watering place many years aar-
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Yels Caclsca, our guide on this kistory tour, Tesident of
kg Bleadmsnt Avenud salghboskesd feda 1906, [Ted Wars)

lier for teamsters engaged in hauvling red-
wood lumber out of the hills and down to the
Estuary. Firpo's Saloon was on the northwest
corner {(later Bued Volgt's, now King's X},
and Cronin's Bar across the stroet.

Public transportation came to the area in
1876, when Pledmont Avenue was still called
Webster Street. A horse-powered street
railway brought wisitors to the cemeteries
fram 7th and Washington wia Broadway and
webster. With the coming of cable cars in
1890, service improved and eventually the
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car line was electrificd and extended up
Moraga Road to Piedmont.

'i-.ran-;'larj.nq devwn Picdmont Avenie, abouk Ewo
hlacks from the cemebery, one would pass a
large Fonced area on the left. This was the
Hume Estate, 4320 Piedmont, home of Georgea
and Anne Hume. It extended back all the
way to Rese Avenue on the hill. Young Hels
watched construction of a concrete block
fence footing — one of the first - along
the Hume Ffrontage on Pledmaont Avenue. An
irven fence was evected above the footing.
At the Piedmont School property Line was a
cypress hedge and the Home howse gtood way
back at the hillside, about where Glensden
mrenue ords today.

When this bhig property was sold in 1939,
the home was dismantled and & new street
was run in from Fiedmont Avenue. This long
hlock was named Gleoneden Avenwge, and ik was
goon lined on both slidez with attractive
bungalows erected by bulldoer Ayé HBecketbb.
By coincldence, the designer of most of
thaese houses was Nels Carlson. Afbter grade
schoel at Piedmont avenuwe and high scheool
at Cakland Tech, Hels sarned a degree in
architectwre from U.C. Berkeley in 1926,

The present Piedmont Avenue Schecl is on
the same site as the old wooden threes-sbory
antique, built in 1891 with peaks and towe
ers, bearing the name "Piedmont School"™
because it gserved children of the whole

Mu=e Bapars on Piodeosnc Avapua oppeblts John Stcreot,

Q. %32, Tho Himoe howma, 4220 Plodzont, wan thiawogh tha
gakte amd bBack agaimt Eka Bill. The aits bocase Gles Tdos
dovolepzent about 1940, {Ted Ware collecrios)
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Piodsant EENeel, At Pledmomt Awvenue ard Sohn Btreat, dullt

0% 1. Photo o190 18=11. {Ted Wurm collactizal

area before Piedmont became a separate city
dn 1807, The new Cakland Tech, Hels re=
called, was built In 1912 on the former
cirgus grounds on Broadways

On the next block of Pledmont, at 4237,
was the branch post office; just a fow
doors up from St. Leo's Church. Right
across the strect was one of the Avenue's
two Safeway stores [closed in Juna 1962).
The post office was relocated at the old
Fonton's Dairy property on 418t Street in
1263 And, oddly encugh, that old Safeway
at 4226 ig the present location of the

popular Fenton's Creamery.

AL the corper of Pledpont and Ridgeway is
St. Leo's Church. The property was acquired
in 1911 by the first pastor, Father Owen

Origimal St. Leo's Church on Pied=int near Ridgewey, o.191%5,
Fagher Owen Lacay ot cancer [EoneE. Aftar che now church wan

Eudlt dn L92%, ehda 1937 bullding bocass Ehe parish hall and
then the achéel asditorivs. (Tod Worm colleseian)

Page 3

Laceys The house at that corner had been
the home of Thomas Hill, rewowned painter
of California landscapes. hlongside this
house, facing Piedmont Avenue, a small
wooden church was constructed in 1912, A
rapidly growling congregation replaced it
with the present 5t. Leo's In 1925-246. The
original church was moved arcund to Howe
Street, where it serves as the schaol avdi-~
torium. The new church iz in cruciform
shape in the Itallan Romancsgue style, set
back from the avenue so a pleasant garden
2ould ke developed along the strech. Over
the deorway le a ceramic by San Francisco's
renowned artlist and sculptor, Father Luafgi
Zfpiocchettl, who worked in the stvle of
Della Robblia and whose work appears on many
Cathelic churches in central California.

Dalls Yue locel, Pledmont and 416, in 1908, In frook of
the entramce i8 Hys., Jones, who oweed and aporabod =g
haeel and diming =oom=s=2%f msale, {Ted Wurm collaociaon)

Continuing deown the Avenus, Nels Carlson
pointed out 4171 Pledmont, the office of -
Dr. Moore, the dentist. 4150-52 was the
Eoval Grocery {("just about the fanciest
thing going“)}. On the corner of 41st, pres—
ent locaticn of Cliticorp Savings, was old
Belle Vue Hotel, with a barber shop and
regtaurant [“MEALS 25£") ot street level
and a clgar store on the corner. Key Roukbe
Fuel and Peed was across the strect. Tts
stocks of ¢oal and wood, sacked feed, and
cther corsedities were delivered in zail-
rocad cars on a spur track behind the Key
Rowte tralin station. This atbEractive rustic
station opencd in 1904, when Borax Smith
started his electric train system.

e
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Key Route atatlon In ¥ 3&=a mini=park on Piedmont Rvenos.

(Vernon J. Sappers collection)
e

Trains from here headed westward through
a cut between Howe Street and Broadway, ran
all the way down 40th Street and out on a
long trestle over the bay to meet ferry-
boats. The station was located directly
opposite and facing Glen Avenue. When
traing started running on the Bay Bridge in
1939, a new station was built at the corner
of 41st (the J Hamburger place is part of
the onetime station). The present parking
lot was an area of tracks, some for freight
cars, others for the passenger trains that

TREL TLL.H " di:l:.?"

FETLOE = A

The sscond Pledmon®: Theater { 1914=17), between Hontell and Honte
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reached San Francisco. In recent grading to
enlarge and improve the parking lot, train
tracks were uncovered that had been paved
over in 1958, when the last traln rolled
gently down Piedmont Avenue and turned
toward the Bay Brlidge.

In this block of Piedmont across from the
station was Curly Freeman's famous pool
hall at 4060. It had been the slte of the
area's first nickelodeon movie house, ac-
cording to late long-time resident John
Keller. This tiny cinema soon folded, re—
placed by a larger, finer picture palace
about a bleck down the street at 3974.
Operated by Katherline Heber, the bullding
had a sort of false front, with blank up—
stairs windows to make it look like a resi-
dence. Nels Carlson said the theater feat~
ured mostly westerns made at Niles, with
Bronco Billy racing around to a lively
plane accompaniment.

When the nickelodeon was opposite the
train station, that busy block was the
business center with lets of foot traffic.
People were getting on and off the street
cars that connected downtown with upper
FPiedmont. Other cars of Oakland Traction
(another Beorax Smith enterprise) came into
Fiedmont station from Rockridge, traveling
down Broadway to 40th, threugh the cut to
41st and Piedmont. Locals referred te this
as the "Country Club Car Line." The term

vigta, (Vernon J. Sappers collection)
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Plodmant Junction was oftan wsed For Pied-
mont and 41st. The station, the hotel, the
ool hall and cigar store, barber and shoe-
ghine stand -~ they were all here in that
block across from “he Ervains. Up at 4125
Pigdmont In 1924 was Skagg's Cash Store;
listed in the 1928 directory as "Skagg's
Bafeway."

Plggly Wiggly was one of the earliest
gracery chains; estabklished by Andrew Wil-
liams about 1921. Branch store 5 was at
66 Piedmont. MeMarr Stores, another carly
chaln, bhad branches at 4080 and 4214 Pled-
mont. Hagstrom's, an Bast Bay chaln, had a
papular store at 4021. That number appears
nowadays on the central entrance of the
Julia Mergan building at 40th and Picdmont,
deslgned for Elsie Turner with Morgan's
"crademark Della Robbla wreaths" set in the
Lrick walls. There is an intereating up-
stalrs space, originally the Chauffeuprs!
Union Hall (note the emblem in the transom
over the door). Most chauffeurs in early
Fledmont belonged to this uniocns

Acrosg the hvenue here is the Piedmont
Grocery, established in the 18208 by Herman
F. Zack apnd operated for many years by his
son Herk. Hext door was Pledmont Meat Mar-
ket, operated by the Suerra family. The
two buslnesses were consolidated in 1264,
Just down from here at Monte Vista is one
af the lagst mom-and-pop corner storoes = Lhe
Mante Wista Food Center. Wells Pargoe's new
bank across the street replaced an attrace
tive American Trust Company bank built in
1227. Well built, in fact: %0 woll that it

s
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Baghar ehop on
Piadnone Avansn,
1014y Shubort's
qeacecy at right,
Freoman's posl
hall to laft,
Identified parti=
cipanke are Frod
Hard, Jack Hall,
nilly Shaoffar

[soatoad) nond “Dan
[Eaatblagk) , ™

ITed Warm
eolloctionh

kool three times as long to demclish as had
been estimated by the wreckers in 1971,
Aadjacent Red Arrow Cleoaners was razed at
the sape tStimer; it was once famed as the
shop of Tony Martla's dad. The criginal
Biadmont Branch Llbrarcy came to 3279577
Fiedmonk Avenee in 1925, mewved to 3943 in
1230, and finally settled in the attractive
Spanish-style building on 41st in 19233.
Farther dovm Piedmont Avenue, opposite
Yosemite at 3791, was the Llovely brick
rlymouth Congregational Church. The wvine
coverad church extended across through to
Howe Street. Heighkorheod boys wsed the
church hall in the evenings for basketball
games and other beneficial activities. The
proesent multi-story parking garage is a
poor replacemnent for the old brick walls
and gardens of this Avenue attraction. Dut

L, i I O
i Frrr. Fracs
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Flod=ant Hackob; 1939 phate by dwnesr Paag Guazrs, Tom [(lafk)
ard Leo (in doorwayl ape duerras, ITed Wurs eollesefag)
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church membership had diminished and a
smaller facility was wanted. It was built
in a quiet residential neighborhcod on
Oakland Avenue.

Our walk down Piedmont Avenue finally
brings us to Moss Avenue, now known as Mac—
Arthur Boulevard. This broad roadway was
created to feed the Bay Bridge and opened
in 1236. 0ld Moss Avenue, a narrow, winding
segment of Highway 50, had ended at Tele-
graph Avenue between 37th and 38th Streets.
Therae was considerable agitation, supported
by Piedmont Avenue merchants, to make 40th
Street the maln bridge appreoach, since it
was already 100 feet wide (but carrying
trains of both Key Route and Sacramento
Morthern lines). "The Bay Bridge 40th
Street Lateral Campaign" promoted using
"the streets we already have." Moss won
out; it was straightened and widened and a
few Piedmont Avenue stores were wiped out.

Below MachArthur, Piedmont Avenue's his-
torical associations diminish. On the left
is Albert Erown Mortuary, dating back to
the sarly 19005 when the move was made from
their 1873 downtown location. Across the
street alongside the freeway is the old
Piedmont Hotel, the area's first “"high—
rise," with 7 1/2 stories. This building,
designed by William Weeks, served for many
years as part of Kaiser School of Nursing.
Looking straight down Piedmont Avenus from
here before 1928 we could have seen St.
Mary's College set back on a hill at 30th
and Broadway. Catholic residents of the
area often attended Sunday services at the
college chapel before St. Leo's existed.

Flymouth Congregakional Chureh. The parish hall; facing
Pladmont Avenus, was a nelghborhood soclal and recreational
center. {dakland History Room)
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St. Mary's College at J0th and Broadway, c.l1%12. College
Started in San Francisco in 1868, was in Oakland 1888=1928,
and then moved =o Moraga. [Vernon Sappera collection)

And baseball teams from several of the old
neighborhoocds used the college diamond on
sSundays during certain seasons of the year.

Nels Carlson, who started us on these
reminiscences, left me with a reminder not
to get too close to the present. We have to
remember that there were horse-~drawn wagons
making deliveries, and others collecting
castoffs with the "rags—~hottles-sacks" men.
The two+horse garbage wagons of Oakland
Scavenger, palnted blue, were known as
"Blue Taxis" to their operators. These were
everyday sights to teenagers like Nels in
the 1920s. And they all lnew Manuel Rose,
Piedmont's first policeman, who covered his
beat on horseback.

Az a young boy, Mels Carlson delivered
milk from cows that were milked within a
bleck of Piedmont RAvenue. He and his
Eriends wore themselves out on dirt-road
bicycle races from the Avenue up to what is
now Monteclair, up Moraga Road. And how they
relished the ride back! There were coaster
races down Pledmont Avenue. The finest
adventure, apparently, was riding thelir
bicycles to the great World's Fair in San
Francisco in 1915. No, not all the way
around the bay, but via the "Nickel Ferry"
EFrom the foot of Oakland's Broadway.

~—~Ted Wurm

Author's note: Somé of this material sriginally appearsd

Iln "PAWMIL Wotes,®™ monthly bulletin of the Piedmont Avenue
Heighbarheosd Improvement League. Added to Hels Carlsan's
reminlacences are dekalls from old ciey directorles and =y
discusgions with loag=tima Avenue resldents including Jahn
KEzller, Lee Gilpin, Eeo Guerra, Helen Ayres, and Tom Disher.
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